HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 16, 2006
1:45 p.m

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Meyer called the House Finance Conmittee neeting to
order at 1:45:36 PM

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Chenault, Co-Chair
Representative Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Stoltze, Vice-Chair
Representati ve Ri chard Foster
Representati ve M ke Hawker
Representative Jim Hol m

Representati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representative Mke Kelly
Representative Beth Kerttul a
Representative Carl Moses

Representati ve Bruce Weyhrauch

MEMBERS ABSENT

None
ALSO PRESENT

Representati ve Nornman Rokeberg; Representative Bill Thonas;

Kate Gard, Chair, Regulatory Conm ssion of Al aska; Jim
Posey, Anchorage Municipal Light and Power, Anchorage; |an
Fisk, Staff, Representative Thomas; John Stone, President,

Al aska Association of Harbor Msters; Kurt Reynertson,

Manager , Cty of Sel dovi a; John Maki nnon, Deput y
Comm ssi oner, Transportation and Public Facilities.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Ted Mninski, Drector of Regulartory Affairs, Al aska
Conmmuni cati on  Systerns; Bill Saupe, AT&T Al ascom Dan
D eckgraeff, Treasurer of Finance and Rates, Enstar; Jim
Rowe, Executive Director, Al aska Tel ephone Association; Al an
Sorum Val dez Harbormasters; Gary Henni gh, Manager, Cty of
King Cove; Geg Missner, Harbormaster, Gty of Wangell;
Val ery M Candel ess, Manager, City of Wangell; Al an Sorum
Har bor Master, Gty of Valdez; Scott Ransom Harbor Master,
City of Seward; Ray Majeski, City and Borough of SitKka.

SUMVARY

HB 441 "An Act relating to operating or driving a notor
vehicle, aircraft, or watercraft while under the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 03/16/06 1:45 P. M



influence; relating to mtigating factors in
sentencing; anmending Rule 35, Alaska Rules of
Crim nal Procedure; and providing for an effective
date."

CS 441 (FIN) was REPORTED QUT of Committee with a
Do Pass Recommendation and seven zero fiscal
notes: four new (ADM DPS; HSS, COR) and three
previously published (ADM N, Courts; LAW.

CSSB 157( FI N)

"An Act relating to the maxi num annual regulatory
cost charge collected from certain regulated
public wutilities and pipeline carriers and to
public utility liability associated with operating
certain transmssion lines under a Regulatory
Comm ssion of Alaska order for joint use and
i nterconnection; and providing for an effective
date."

CSSB 157 (FIN) was REPORTED OUT of Conmittee with
| ndi vi dual Recommendati ons and one new fiscal note
(HFC for DCED).

HB 478 "An Act relating to the nunicipal harbor facility
grant program and providing for an effective
date."

HB 478 was HEARD and HELD for further
consi derati on.

#HB176

HB 176 "An Act exenpting the state and its political
subdi vi sions from daylight saving tine."
HB176 was SCHEDULED AND NOT HEARD.

#HB271

HB 271 "An Act relating to limtations on overtime for
registered nurses in health care facilities; and
providing for an effective date."
HB271 was SCHEDULED AND NOT HEARD.

#HB441

HOUSE BI LL NO. 441

"An Act relating to operating or driving a notor vehicle
aircraft, or watercraft while under the influence; relating
to mtigating factors in sentencing; anmending Rule 35,
Al aska Rules of Crimnal Procedure; and providing for an
effective date.”

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 03/16/06 1:45 P. M



Representative Stoltze MOVED to ADOPT Wrk Draft 24-
LS1295\F, Luckhaupt, 3/8/06. There being NO OBJECTI ONS, the
Comm ttee Substitute was ADOPTED

REPRESENTATI VE NORVAN ROKEBERG  SPONSOR, summarized the
intent of the bill as conformng and updating statutes to
the therapeutic court nodel in the State of Alaska for the
DU or alcohol related courts. He noted the success of the
program as well as the proposed savings to the general
fund. He referred to previous testinony citing a ten to one
savings ratio fromhard dollars to general fund savings. He
observed that an initial review of the pilot program
revealed a two to one potential savings, and submtted that
the nost inportant elenent was the saving of Ilives by
successful rehabilitation. He stated that the first program
woul d begin in Juneau, and referred any questions to his
staff nmenber, Heather Nor brega.

Representative Rokeberg referenced the zero fiscal note,
based on previously authorized expenditures wunder the
initial bill of HB 172, the initial DU felony court |evels,
and subsequent legislation that authorized the necessary
posi tions. There has been sonme discussion regarding the
national highway safety funds. He noted that $669 thousand
had been received from the National H ghway Safety
Transportation Fund with the adoption of the mandatory

seatbelt |aw He noted that sonme confusion existed
regarding the local State match of $344 thousand in order to
utilize the appropriation. He concluded that there had

been issues wth the Public Defender’'s Ofice, the
Department of Law, the Departnent of Corrections, the
Courts, and other issues of expense as a part of the General
Fund appropriations. He noted that newer incom ng funds
would be wused to establish new progranms, such as in
Fai r banks and Ket chi kan.

Representati ve Weyhrauch asked whether the bill established
a separate court. Represent ati ve Rokeberg replied that the
program initiated a court wthin a court or a type of
process within the district and superior court |evels. He
noted that it also established a statutory franmework which
gave judges sone flexibility in granting sanctions and
concessions to program participants as long as they neet the
requirenments.

Representative Joule observed that a recent Al aska Budget
Report indicated budget changes nmade by the Court System
sub-commttee and wondered if they correlated to the bill.

Representati ve Rokeberg stated that the program was not
affected by budget changes since it carried a zero fisca

note. However, he stressed that in order for the programto
succeed, it required not only policy support but also
financial support by the Legislature. He stated that they
were currently able to | everage substantial federal dollars

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 03/16/06 1:45 P. M



by use of mnimal GCeneral Funds. He noted historic problens
culturally wth some agencies that did not support such
concepts, but acknow edged current progress.

1:53: 14 PM

Vi ce- Chair Meyer opened the floor to public testinony.
There being no coments from the floor, testinony was
invited via tel econference. There being no comments, public
testi nony cl osed.

Representative Foster MOVED to REPORT CS 441 (FIN) out of
Commttee wth individual recomendations and attached
fiscal notes. There being NO OBJECTIONS, it was so ordered.

CS 441 (FIN) was REPORTED OUT of Committee with a Do Pass
Recommendati on and seven zero fiscal notes: four new (ADM
DPS; HSS, COR) and three previously published (ADMN;
Courts; LAW.

#SB157
CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 157(FIN)

"An Act relating to the maximum annual regulatory cost
charge collected fromcertain regulated public utilities and
pipeline carriers and to public utility liability associated
with operating certain transm ssion |ines under a Regul atory
Comm ssi on of Al aska or der for j oi nt use and
i nterconnection; and providing for an effective date."

Representative Stoltze MOVED to ADOPT Wrk Draft 24-
GS1138\1, Wayne, 3/8/06. There being NO OBJECTIQON, the
Comm ttee Substitute was ADOPTED

1:57: 24 PM

KATE 3 ARD, CHAIR, REGULATORY COW SSI ON OF ALASKA testified
regarding the bill. She indicated that the bill would
provide a funding nmechanism for the purchase and
i npl ementation of data systens that would allow regul ated
utilities and pipeline conpanies in Al aska access to a secure
web- based RCA portal, through which all day to day business
transactions could be perfornmed electronically. The project
was valuated by a wuser wutility commttee and underwent a
public process with the RCA in 2004/05, and is supported by
utilities conpanies as a positive nove for the regulatory
environnment in the State. She noted that the bill would
increase utility cost for consunmers by approximately $1 per
year, since the costs were spread over a very large rate
base. She requested that the Commttee pass the |egislation
as a good policy for Al aska.

Represent ati ve Hawker asked about the AIDEA receipts as a
fundi ng source. Ms. Gaird noted that these were actually

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 03/16/06 1:45 P. M



Regul atory Cost Charge (RCC) receipts. Representative Hawker
proposed that the fiscal note be changed to reflect the
correction in the fundi ng source.

Vi ce-Chair Meyer opened the floor to public testinony.

TED MONI NSKI , D RECTOR OF REGULARTORY AFFAI RS, ALASKA
COVMUNI CATI ON SYSTEMS, testified via teleconference. He
noted that ACS was supportive of RCA plans to update its
internal case managenent systens, and strongly supports its
plans to create an electronic filing capability and enhanced
searchabl e data system

2: 00: 49 PM

M. Moninski noted his experience in the field, representing
public utilities before the RCA and stressed the value of
automating the operations of these agencies. He outlined
ACS's experience with the Federal Communications System
i mpl emrenting tools for efficiency such as its EDOC system and
various searchabl e data bases. He proposed that such systens
woul d ultimately pass benefits on to utility custoners.

2:02: 12 PM

M. Mninski also expressed concern about whether certain
nodules of the system would not be inplenented if not
adequately funded. He noted the inportance of such
efficiency tools, while acknow edging the inpact on
consuners, and the inportance to carefully evaluate any
i ncreased rates. ACS recomended that that Legislature and
RCA work together to ensure a real rate of return on rate-
payers’ investnent. He proposed that once the funding
i ncreased over a two year period — and stated support of an
increase of the RCA cap to $1.9 for two years — it nay
generate an anmount of funding that allowed consuners to be
refunded rate increases. He urged legislators to consider
this forward thinking | egislation.

2:04: 17 PM

Bl LL SAUPE, AT&T ALASCOM testified via tel econference. He
stated that he has worked with the Anchorage law firm of
Ashburn and Mason, representing utility conpanies before the
RCA since 1985. He stated that AT&T Al ascom believed that
the proposed $3 nillion increase in the Regulatory Cost
Charge was the nost reasonable neans to upgrade the RCA's
conmput er systens.

M. Saupe noted their understanding that the funds woul d be
adm nistered by a wusers comittee, nade up of a broad
spectrum  of utility I ndustry and public I nt er est
representatives. The commttee would work to create an
i nproved conputer systemto allow for a searchable data base

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 03/16/06 1:45 P. M



as well as other inprovenents to the agency’s efficiency, and
quality of its orders. He also surmsed that it would save a
great deal of noney in terns of tinme savings. He raised
concern that if inplenmented in stages, there was a risk that
sone aspects would not be conpleted. He also suggested that
any surplus woul d be passed back to the consuners in savings.
He proposed that they ensure that Regulatory Comm ssion of
Al aska increase be sufficient to provide adequate funding for
the entire project devel oped by the user conmttee.

2: 07: 27 PM

DAN DI ECKGRAEFF, TREASURER AND MANAGER OF FI NANCE AND RATES,
ENSTAR NATI ONAL GAS COWPANY, testified via tel econference.
He noted his experience with the conpany and the spectrum of
his conpany’s service in Al aska.

2:09: 21 PM

M. D eckgraeff stated that Enstar supported the RCA' s
initiative to update its information systens and to fund it
with the proposed two-year limted increase in the RCC. He
i ndi cated the advantages for the utility conpanies, such as
tracking of cases and cost of cases, naking information
avai l able faster and easier, and savings in storage and
filing. He concluded that it was inportant to his
corporation that RCA have the necessary funding to conplete
all aspects of the project.

2:10: 54 PM

M. Dieckgraeff recounted a recently conpleted project during
whi ch historical information had been added into a data base,
simlar to the system proposed by the Comm ssion. He stated
his belief that this would be a very hel pful system

2:11:39 PM

JIM POSEY, NMNANAGER, ANCHORAGE MUNI CI PAL LIGHT AND PONER,
ANCHORACE, testified in support of the bill. He noted the
conplicated nature of dealings with the Comm ssion in terns
of filing docunments and information. He confirnmed that

having a sinultaneous filing of information would enable
conmmuni cation with regulators, noting that recent filing of
informati on had decreased the anobunt of time spent in such
endeavors.

2:14: 43 PM

JIM RONE, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, ALASKA TELEPHONE ASSOCI ATI QON,
testified via teleconference in support of the increase in
the RCC charge for the reasons outlined by previous
t esti nony.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 03/16/06 1:45 P. M



M. Rowe noted that in rural areas, the FCC electronic filing
has saved a great deal of tine. He suggested that for the
Regul atory Comm ssion of Alaska to have the same type of
filing systemwould be of simlar benefit. He noted that all
of his directors supported the legislation for its potentia
increase in efficiency. He read a note froman enployee with
Mat anuska Tel ephone Associ ati on. The letter expressed the
| esseni ng burden of filing through new FCC el ectronic system
but asked about the extent of docunent filing. M. Rowe
concluded that such efficiency would pass along savings to
cust oners.

2:18: 23 PM

Representative Stoltze asked whether there was a point when
accunul ated regul atory charges mght conprise nore than half
of a service rate, and if in such cases this mght represent
a concern of public policy.

M. Rowe acknow edged that half of the conpanies in his
menbership were cooperatives, and were experiencing a
significant amount of service charges. He acknow edged t hat
t hese breakout charges were not fornmerly seen on bills, but
that total custoner charges may not actually have increased.

2:19: 36 PM

He acknow edged that network access fees had been reduced
recently at the request of cooperatives. He noted the
perception that sone |ocal phone calls were “free”, and that
in fact charges were sonetines not what they appeared.

2:21: 01 PM

Representative Stoltze noted the inprovenents in phone
char ges.

There being no further public testinony, Vice-Chair Meyer
cl osed public testinony.

Representative Kerttula asked regarding Sections 3 and 6 of
the bill, regarding retroactivity and liability for danages.
She wished to ensure that she did not have a conflict of
interest, since her famly had a current law suit pending
Ms. Gaird confirnmed that the retroactivity only deals wth
damages after Decenber 1, 2004.

2:22:40 PM

Representative Kerttula asked if the state of Al aska would
becone |iable if danages were awarded.

Ms. Gard explained that the anendnent resulted from a
Regul atory Comm ssion of Alaska order requiring MEA to

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 03/16/06 1:45 P. M



provide service to the A aska intertie in the Matanuska
valley. She explained that the MEA was the only utility in
this area using its own facilities to provide its own
intertie service. The RCA ordered the utility to provide the
service at 138 kilovolts, and the utility' s design was for a
| ower power production |evel. She proposed that this section
of the bill was in the public interest, because it exenpts
MEA from liability should any harm result from running the
line at this reduced |evel.

2:24: 23 PM

Representative Kerttula followed up and Ms. G ard confirned
that the state of Alaska has assuned liability for any
pl aintiff damages.

Representative Kertulla wi shed to ensure that no sovereign
unity or waiver would be put forward. M. Gard noted that
the bill had been evaluated by Legislative Budget and Audit
and the Attorney Ceneral’s office when it had been heard in
Senate Finance the previous year. She noted that at that
time, no discussion occurred around the possibility of a
plaintiff not being able to seek recovery.

2:25: 20 PM

Representative Kerttula expressed her dissatisfaction wth
the directness of this response, and stated that she would
followup with the Attorney CGeneral’s office.

Representative Chenault asked if the Regul atory Conm ssion of
Al aska had already been out for bid on the project, and if
the funds were truly adequate to provide the proposed system

Ms. G ard explained that that system was conprised of three

primary conponents: first building the system core of an
el ectronic case nmnmanagenent system a content managenent
system which will maintain data for a goal of seven years,

allom ng conpanies to research data for that tine; and the
ability of the utilities and pipeline conpanies to use the
web interface to file with the Regulatory Conmm ssion of
Al aska and el imnate paper filing.

2:27: 54 PM

Ms. Gaird noted that she had originally estimated a $1.5
mllion budget on the project. She went on to explain that
utilities during public process indicated that this was not
sufficient. A wutility user commttee was fornmed, and a
conceptual budgeting process ensued, developing a range of
budgets between $890 thousand and $2.2 mllion. Wthin that
process, the conmittee added the ability for conpanies to
view old data, relying on pictures of data that had been
taken in past years, sonmething not included in the current

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 03/16/06 1:45 P. M



funding. She noted that utilities had expressed a desire to
conpile historical information into searchable data. She
reiterated that this historical research was not part of the
currently proposed fundi ng.

In response to a follow up question by Representative
Chenault, Ms. Gard confirmed that she was confortable wth
the proposed funding level of $1.5 mllion to build the
three-part core system

2: 30: 36 PM

Ms. Gard noted that the second phase of the project would
require a range of $.5 mllion to $1.0 mllion to convert
historical information into searchable data. She stated that

this funding was contained in the version of the bill passed
by the Senate Committee, but not in the current Conmttee
Substitute. She stated that while there was every

opportunity for utilities to return and request future
increases of the RCC, it was not likely that the RCA would
make such a request.

2:31:41 PM

Representative Kelly speculated that a future request m ght
be nmade for the second phase of the project. He pointed out
that he had net with the Conm ssioner on this issue to ensure
that future projects mght receive consideration. He
proposed that the project may then be extended if
appropri at e.

Comm ssioner Gard stated that wutilities would need to
approach the legislature for such action, and noted that the
RCA was scheduled to sunset, and would not be likely to ask
the adm nistration to sponsor a future bill.

2:33:18 PM

Represent ati ve Foster MOVED to REPORT CS SB 157 out of
Conmttee with individual recommendations and attached fiscal
notes. There being NO CBJECTIONS, it was so ordered.

CSSB 157 (FIN) was REPORTED OUT of Committee with |Individual
Recommendat i ons and one new fiscal note (HFC for DCED).

#HB478
HOUSE BI LL NO. 478

"An Act relating to the nunicipal harbor facility grant

program and providing for an effective date."
MOVED to ADOPT Work Draft 24-LS1694\1, Cook, 3/15/06

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 03/16/06 1:45 P. M



Representative Stoltze MWED to ADOPT Wrk Draft 24-
LS1694/1, Cook, 3/15/06. There being NO OBJECTION, the
Comm ttee Substitute was ADOPTED

2: 35: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BI LL THOVAS, SPONSOR, stated that this was a
conpanion bill to SB 291 (Sen. Steadman). He noted that the
bill had been introduced to respond to the State process of
transferring harbors to municipalities, and discovering
funding shortfalls needed to conplete necessary repairs.

The bill developed through coments from the Al askan
Associ ation of Harbormasters throughout Al aska. The bil
will create a harbor facility grant fund, using funds such

as fisheries business tax or fuel tax and other taxes. The
Departnment of Administration would admnister the grants.
He pointed out the requirenment of a 50/50 grant match from

muni ci palities, requiring commtnment on the |ocal |evel.
The funding would provide repair or major maintenance in
communities, and be |imted to one grant per year per

facility. Some comunities may have nore than one harbor
but would be linmted to a $5 m Ilion aggregate cap.

2: 38: 08 PM

Representati ve Thonmas noted that to qualify for a grant, a
muni ci pality mnust denonstrate the ability to operate
i ndependently of state aid in the future, and noted that
sever al communities were nmaking this adjustnent by

increasing harbor rates. He pointed out that new
construction received the lowest priority in the project
list. The proposed effective date of the legislation is
July 1, 2006.

2:39:33 PM

| AN FI SK, STAFF, REPRESENTATI VE THOMAS, noted the change in
t he grammer on Page 2, line 14, from “should be” to “is”. He
al so noted that on lines 19 to 23, |anguage was inserted to
clarify the types of funds that could be used for the
muni ci pal match, especially the shared portions of the
fisheries business tax. He al so pointed out that | anguage
regardi ng municipal revenue sharing was also included in
case those nonies becane available in the future. He noted
that previous |anguage added by the Community and Regi ona
Affairs Conmittee had prohibited any state funds from being
used in the municipal match, and stated the Sponsor’s desire
that certain state funds be excepted.

2:40: 52 PM

Representative Kerttula observed that Page 3, Iline 5,
l[imted nmunicipalities to only one grant. She asked if this

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 03/16/06 1:45 P. M



referred to just this program or any prograns, and
suggested the need for a technical anmendnent.

M. Fisk responded that this limtation pertained only to
the program and conceded that an anendnent mght be
hel pful .

Representative Kerttula asked for the reason of the program
[imtation to one grant. M. Fisk responded that the
program was limted to address the deferred maintenance
needs carrying over fromthe State transfer. He noted that
they wished to ensure that a municipality was able to neet
t hose needs not properly addressed by the State.

2:42: 54 PM

Representative Hawker observed that if one grant was
received, another grant could not be obtained. He asked
hypot hetically if during a granting period, all requests
except one were mnimally funded, this would [|eave al
funding avail able for the unfunded project in the subsequent
year. Representative Thomas stated that projects would be
prioritized by comunity need. He noted that sone
comunities had nore than one harbor, and could apply for
one harbor per year. He conceded that sone projects may
have to wait a few years to receive funding. He gave the
exanpl e of Yakutat, when a transferred harbor experienced a
shortfall in maintenance funding. Representati ve Hawker
acknowl edged the intent, but suggested nore work on the
| anguage to close a potential |oophole.

Vi ce-Chair Meyer expressed his intent to HOLD the bill in
order to receive nore testinony and potential anmendnent.

Representative Kelly asked if the list of transferred habors
was all-inclusive. Representative Thomas replied that there
could be other harbors being transferred this year that were
not yet on the I|ist.

2:47:15 PM

JOHN STONE, PRESI DENT, ALASKA ASSCCI ATI ON OF HARBOR MASTERS
AND PORT ADM NI STRATCORS testified in support and gratitude
for the bill. H s organization represents 27 nmnunici pal
har bor systens throughout the state. He noted that they had
been working on this problem for many years. He expressed
support of the bill and the matching grant program He
noted that he had provided the committee with witten
comments (copy on file.)

M. Stone pointed out that nuch of the harbor structure
being transferred to nunicipalities had been built in the
1960’ s through 1980's. He showed the Conmittee an outdated
power cable fromHarris Harbor in Juneau that fed 40, 30-anp

House Fi nance Conmmittee 11 03/16/06 1:45 P. M



shore power services. The cable was indicative of the
electrical code of the 1960's. He conpared it to the newy
installed cable. He enphasized the expense involved in
trying to recapitalize the infrastructure.

M. Stone referred to a question about page 3, regarding the
one-tinme grant. He explained that the intent of the Harbor
Masters was to ensure that grants were used for rebuilding a
facility on a one-tinme basis.

2:52: 26 PM

Representative Kelly asked about the transfer of the
facilities and the anount of funding that acconpanied the
transfer. M. Stone replied that the purpose was to bring
the harbors to good condition. He stated that the funding
was far short of what was needed to restore facilties, even
in terns of code requirenents. He also noted that user
needs had also changed, wth larger float systens now
required. The noney provided was only one quarter to one
third of what the communities actually needed.

Representative Kelly asked how the anount of funding had
been det erm ned. M. Stone replied that the fornula used
was consistent, but overall quite |ow

Representative Holm asked whether, when the transfer
occurred, there was a msunderstanding about the facility
requirenments. M. Stone stated that the noney was i ntended
to restore facilities to good condition, but it that it fel
far short. He suggested that this may have been because
many facilities were at the end of their wuseful life,
requiring nore than sinply maintenance. He also noted a
difference in code, rather than a depreciation of an
i nvest nment .

Representative Holm asked if the intent was to build new
facilities. M. Stone confirmed that this nmay be what
occurs, although various comunities wll try to refurbish
as they can. Representative Hol m expressed concern over the
mat chi ng funds, and wondered if a better formula was now in
pl ace to determ ne the anount of funding needed. M. Stone
explained that a consulting engineer would be hired to
devel op a cost estimate to be used to apply for the grant.

Representative Kerttula asked how nmuch funding per year was
spent by the Gty and Borough of Juneau to naintain harbors,
and how nmuch would be saved by the State by transferring
this maintenance to communities. M. Stone replied that
the operating cost for maintaining the float system in
Juneau was approximately $2 mllion a year. Representative
Kerttul a observed that this did not cover all of the costs,
and only represented one conmunity.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 12 03/16/06 1:45 P. M



2:59:45 PM

Representative Kelly asked how it could be prevented that a
grant acconpanying a transfer was not being wasted on
mai nt enance that would eventually be replaced in a rebuild.
M. Stone stated that DOT would watch for this during the
grant process, but that in each case the npbst econom cal
rebui l d woul d be consi der ed.

3:01: 01 PM

KURT REYNERTSON, MANAGER, CITY OF SELDOVIA, testified in
support of the legislation. He noted that they had recently
passed a resolution through their «city council. He
expl ai ned that when they took over from harbornmasters, they
received $2.6 mllion fromthe State. After an engineer’s
estimate of $3.4 nmllion, they discovered an $800-900
t housand shortage in order to provide good harbor standards.
He stated that this anmount was insurnmountable for a
community of their size. He commented that the bill would
hel p to provide needed mnuni ci pal services.

3:02: 55 PM

Representative Kelly asked if the $2.6 mllion for
refurbi shment was included in the amount for the rebuild of
t he harbor. M. Reynertson replied that engineering
desi gns cost approxi mately $250 thousand, and the renaining
funding would be utilized to conplete the actual harbor
rehabilitation.

3:03: 50 PM

GARY HENNI GH, MANAGER, CITY OF KING COVE, testified via
tel econference. He expressed support for the bill and for
t he harbormasters for their work on the topic. He explained
that their community was one of the first to take over
managenent of their harbor from the State. He noted that
t he managenent has been nore difficult than anticipated. He
expl ai ned that the harbor was in poor condition, affecting
the local residents who use the harbor. He stated his
opinion that dedicating the fisheries tax as a funding
source was a good idea. He noted that between $4 and $5
mllion had been paid into harbor repair by l|local fishers.
He observed that linking this income to solving the harbor
problem spoke well of Jlegislators working wth |ocal
har bor mast er s. He suggested that on page 2, lines 17 and
18, |anguage be changed so that State Revenue funds from
revenue sharing or a legislative grant could be used as a
mat ch. He suggested that these sources of nunicipal funding
would be driven predomnately by oil and gas revenues
experienced by other areas of the state.

3:07:41 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 03/16/06 1:45 P. M



He al so suggested that on Page 3, lines 1 and 2, to add a
provision allowng those comunities that first accepted
harbor transfers receive a small “head start” in applying
for funds, allowng for sone portion of the funding in the
first two years to be set aside for conmmunities which had
initially taken over harbor managenent. He enphasized that
in past years, DOT had no fornmula to assist nunicipalities
in determ ning the anount needed to bring the harbor up to
reasonabl e standards. He noted that $352 thousand received
inthe early 1990's did not make a legitimte contribution.

3:09: 05 PM

Representative Kelly comented that Hooonah, Juneau and
Val dez had inplenented significant fee increases in their
har bors, and asked what fee increases had been experienced
by their community.

M. Hennigh responded that for fifteen years the fee for
noor age had increased by only 25 percent. He noted the need
for a local fee increase, but observed that currently the
residents mght be unwilling to pay increased fees on a
harbor that was in ill repair. He proposed that support for
fees would increase when they could be assured that there
woul d be buil ding i nprovenents.

3:10: 31 PM

Representative Kelly asked how many were on the waiting |ist
for slips. M. Hennigh responded that there was no waiting
list, since unless one was a comercial fisher, they would
not be docking there. He noted that their waterfront was
very busy, although the community was often overl ooked. He
stated they were the |argest per capita fish producing area
in that part of the state of Al aska.

3:11: 42 PM

Vi ce- Chair Meyer stated that HB176 would not be heard,;
i kewi se he stated that HB271 would not be heard in the
nmeeti ng.

Publ i c Testinony conti nued.

3:12: 59 PM

GREG MElI SSNER, HARBORMVASTER, CI TY OF WRANCGELL, testified in
support of the bill. He voiced concern over page 3, line 9,
regarding the one tinme only nature of a grant per facility.
He asked what qualified as a “facility”; he pointed out that
per haps each float would be considered a facility within a
singl e harbor, and suggested that it mght nmake sense for a
community to refurbish one float at a tine.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 14 03/16/06 1:45 P. M



M. Meissner then referred to Line 16 of the bill and noted
that a replacenent cost for a concrete float would be $5
mllion, vs. $3 mllion for a repair, and suggested that it
woul d be nore cost effective to replace rather than repair.

3:15: 04 PM

M. Stone responded that the definition of facility was an
i ssue being addressed with the Departnent of Transportation
and Public Facilities. He suggested that the cases woul d be
addressed on an individual basis. He stated that he would
be glad to speak directly with M. Meissner regarding his
guesti ons.

3:16: 02 PM

VALERY MCCANDELESS, MANAGER, CITY OF WRANGELL, testified via
tel econference in support of the bill. She expressed her
pl easure that the bill was addressing specific work on each
har bor .

3:16:49 PM

ALAN SORUM HARBOR MASTER, CITY OF VALDEZ, testified via
tel econference in support of the bill. He noted that many
of the boats harbored in their city were from the city of
Fai r banks. He voiced his support for working with the

Department of Transportation and Public Facilities, wth
whom t hey’ ve worked on grants for harbor projects.

3:18: 25 PM

SCOIT RANSOM HARBOR MASTER, CITY OF SEWARD, testified via
tel econference in support of the bill. He noted that his
community had taken over the managenent of their harbor in
1999, and currently had over $6 nillion in deferred
mai nt enance. He noted that these were the oldest floats in
the harbor, installed after the earthquake. He stated that

they had two rate increases to support the harbors. The
bill will help wth the deferred maintenance.
3:19:31 PM

RAY MAJESKI, HARBORVMASTER, CITY AND BOROUGH OF Sl TKA,
testified via teleconference, in support of the bill. He
explained that the city had taken over three harbors from
the State, and after doing so discovered that Thonpson
Har bor needed to be replaced, at a cost estimated at $6.7
mllion. He stated that $3 million of $4.4 nmillion fromthe
State was spent on the other two harbors, with $1 nmillion
remaining to replace Thonpson Harbor. He noted that repairs
had added 15 nore years to the other two harbors, but
stressed that Thonpson Harbor was beyond repair. He

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 03/16/06 1:45 P. M



expressed concern regarding the statenent that grant
applications nmust be filed in the fiscal year immediately

precedi ng February 1. He pointed out that they were
currently replacing the harbor and receiving bids, beginning
construction by m d-August. He hoped that the bill, if

passed, would cover their current process. He noted that in
the past six years, they' d raised noborage rates nore than

100 percent. The bill would help the conmmunity nenbers.
3:.22:25 PM

He noted that to be able to take the burden off of harbor
users in his comunity, the bill would allow themto raise
them to raise rates at an acceptable |evel. He concl uded
that the bill was a positive step.

3:23: 08 PM

There being no further testinony, public testinony was
cl osed.

JOHN MAKI NNON, DEPUTY COW SSI ONER, TRANSPORTATI ON  AND
PUBLI C FACILITIES, responded to a question by Representative
Kelly regarding the original formulation of funding when
harbors were originally transferred from the State to
muni ci palities.

3:25: 07 PM

He explained that nost of the harbors discussed as
“underfunded” were part of the Novenber 2002 statew de bond
issue, allocating $30 million to ten conmunities and 26
facilities. The nunbers used for allocations resulted from
a 1992 Core of Engineers’ condition survey of all boat
harbor facilities in Al aska. In 2002, the Departnment was
asked to develop a list of harbors for repair and anounts
for deferred maintenance. The nunbers from the 1992 study
were adjusted for inflation and also for additional deferred
mai nt enance. He stated that it was unclear as to whether
t hose nunbers were accurate. He conceded that the level to
which they aspired was not that which was desired by many
conmuni ties. He referred to testinony by M. Stone
regardi ng changes in codes, but noted that comrunity changes
also resulted in different harbor user needs. Sone harbors
had changed from working harbors into recreational harbors.
He stated that changes in comunity expectations were not
reflected in the nunbers devised by the harbor engineer
involved in the bond study. He concluded that this
accounted for the discrepancy between the estinmates.

3:27:39 PM

Respondi ng to anot her question by Representative Kelly, M.
Maki nnon noted that some harbors were very difficult to

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 03/16/06 1:45 P. M



transfer due to a difference in expectation. He noted that
communities were reluctant to raise rates to pay for
i mprovenents.

3:28: 45 PM

Representati ve Hawker noted his experience with the transfer
of the harbor at Whittier, stating clearly that there was no
State responsibility following the transfer of the harbor
However, he noted the significant need at sone of the harbor
facilities. He also proposed that harbors should be in
“excellent” condition rather than ®“good” as is stated in
current policy, along wth the transfer of har bor
responsibility to local authorities.

3:30:42 PM

Representative Kelly observed that harbor masters found it
difficult to balance the anmount of repairs needed with funds
avai l able. He asked how the Legislature could avoid anot her
problemw th deferred nmai ntenance in the future.

M. Makinnon recommended a change in the definition of

“facility”, including “portion thereof”. A facility m ght
decide to inprove a separate finger each year, and that
could be considered a separate facility. The intent is

that once the various portions are conpleted, it becones the
responsibility of the community to coll ect adequate fees for
mai nt enance so as not to approach the State in another 15
years for replacenment costs. He stressed that conmunities
need to take on the responsibility.

HB 478 was HEARD and HELD in Committee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ OURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 3:32 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 17 03/16/06 1:45 P. M



